JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE.

Thursday, January 8, 2015.

Met at twelve minutes after eleven o'clock A.M., in an Informal Session, with Mr. Donato of Medford in the Chair (having been appointed by the Speaker, under authority conferred by Rule 5, to perform the duties of the Chair).

Pledge of allegiance.

At the request of the Chair (Mr. Donato), the members, guests and employees joined with him in reciting the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Communication from the Minority Leader.

January 7, 2015.

Steven T. James, Clerk House of Representatives State House, Room 145 Boston, MA 02133

Dear Mr. Clerk:

Election of Minority Leader. Please be advised that, at a Republican Caucus held on Wednesday, January 7, 2015 in hearing room A-1, with all thirty-five (35) members present, I, Bradley H. Jones, Jr., was re-elected as Minority Leader.

Please contact me should you have any questions. Thank you.

Sincerely,

BRADLEY H. JONES, JR., *Minority Leader*.

The communication was read; and placed on file.

Papers from the Senate.

Returns of votes for state officers and Councillors. A communication from the Secretary of the Commonwealth transmitting the returns of votes cast at the election held in the Commonwealth on the fourth day of November, 2014, for the constitutional offices of Governor, Lieutenant-Governor, Attorney General, Secretary of the Commonwealth, Treasurer and Receiver General, and Auditor of the Commonwealth and Executive Councillors in the several districts, together with schedules showing the number of ballots which appear to have been cast for each person voted for, was read.

The following order then was adopted, in concurrence:

Ordered, That a joint committee to consist of members of the Senate and House of Representatives be appointed for the purpose of canvassing the votes for Governor and Lieutenant-Governor, Secretary of the Commonwealth, Attorney General, Treasurer and Receiver-General and Auditor of the Commonwealth, and Councillors in the several districts.

Senators Spilka, Donnelly, Barrett, Pacheco and Fattman having been appointed by the Senate, Representatives Linsky of Natick,

Id.

Nangle of Lowell and Campanale of Leicester were joined on the part of the House.

Report of a Committee.

The following report of the joint special committee on the returns of votes was read:

From an examination of the returns, it appears that votes were cast as follows:—

For Governor and Lieutenant-Governor.

Baker and Polito (Republican) had	1,044,573
Coakley and Kerrigan (Democratic) had	1,004,408
Flachuk and Jennings (United Independent) had	71,814
Lively and Saunders (Independent) had	19,378
McCormick and Post (Independent) had	16,295
All others	1,858
Blanks	28,463
Total Votes	2,186,789
And Charles D. Baker and Karyn E. Polito are elected.	

For Attorney General.

Maura Healey of Boston (Democratic) had	1,280,513
John B. Miller of Winchester (Republican)	793,821
All others	2,103
Blanks	110,352
Total votes cast	2,186,789
And Maura Healey is elected.	

For Secretary of State.

William Francis Galvin of Boston (Democratic) had	1,395,616
David D'Arcangelo of Malden (Republican) had	597,491
Daniel L. Factor of Acton (Green-Rainbow) had	74,789
All others	1,421
Blanks	117,472
Total votes cast	2,186,789
A 1337'11' E ' C 1 ' ' 1 4 1	

And William Francis Galvin is elected.

For Treasurer and Receiver-General.

Deborah B. Goldberg of Brookline (Democratic) had	1,120,192
Michael James Heffernan of Wellesley (Republican) had	828,894
Ian T. Jackson of Arlington (Green-Rainbow) had	81,907
All others	1,665
Blanks	154,131
Total votes cast	2,186,789
And Deborah B. Goldberg is elected.	

For Auditor.

Suzanne M. Bump of Great Barrington (Democratic) had	1,146,987
Patricia S. Saint Aubin of Norfolk (Republican) had	757,213
MK Merelice of Brookline (Green-Rainbow) had	81,430
All others	2,315
Blanks	198,844
Total votes cast	2,186,789
And Community of Court Description in alasted	

And Suzanne M. Bump of Great Barrington is elected.

Returns of votes for state officers and Councillors. And also that it appears from an examination of the returns that the following named persons have been duly elected Councillors in their respective districts, to wit:

District No. 1. Joseph C. Ferreira of Somerset.

District No. 2. Robert L. Jubinville of Milton.

District No. 3. Marilyn M. Petitto Devaney of Watertown.

District No. 4. Christopher A. Iannella, Jr., of Boston.

District No. 5. Eileen R. Duff of Gloucester.

District No. 6. Terrence W. Kennedy of Lynnfield.

District No. 7. Jennie L. Caissie of Oxford.

District No. 8. Michael J. Albano of Longmeadow.

Under suspension of the rules, on motion of Mr. Linsky of Natick, the report was considered forthwith; and it was accepted. Sent to the Senate for concurrence.

Paper from the Senate.

The following order then was also adopted in concurrence:

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Commonwealth give notice to Joseph C. Ferreira of Somerset, Robert L. Jubinville of Milton, Marilyn Pettito Devaney, Christopher A. Iannella, Jr., Eileen R. Duff of Gloucester, Terrence W. Kennedy, Jennie L. Caissie and Michael J. Albano of Longmeadow that they have been duly elected Councillors, to advise the Governor in the executive part of the government.

Joint Convention.

Convention.

Councillors notified of

their

election.

Pursuant to assignment, at nine minutes before twelve o'clock noon, the two branches bet in

CONVENTION

for the purpose of administering the oath of office to the Governorelect, the Lieutenant-Governor-elect and the several Councillors-elect, and were called to order by the Honorable Stanley C. Rosenberg, President of the Senate.

Order Adopted.

Notify Governor. Ordered, That a committee be appointed to consist of members of the Senate and the House of Representatives to wait upon the Governor-elect, the Lieutenant-Governor-elect and the several Councilors-elect and inform them that the two branches of the General Court are now in convention for the purpose of administering oaths required to qualify them for the discharge of the duties of their offices.

Senators Hedlund of Plymouth and Norfolk, McGee of Essex, Keenan of Norfolk and Plymouth, Lesser of Hampden and Hampshire and Gobi of Worcester, Hampden, Hampshire and Middlesex were appointed the committee on the part of the Senate; Representatives Jones of North Reading, Nangle of Lowell, Poirier of North Attleboro, Haddad of Somerset, Hill of Ipswich, Rushing of Boston, Frost of Auburn, Story of Amherst, Wagner of Chicopee, Basile of Boston and Beaton of Shrewsbury were appointed the committee on the part of the House

Subsequently, Mr. Hedlund, for the said committee, reported that the Governor-elect, Lieutenant-Governor-elect and the Councillorselect were duly notified.

Subsequently, the Governor-elect, the Lieutenant-Governor-elect, the Councillors-elect, and William Francis Galvin, Secretary of State, entered the Chamber, under the escort of the Sergeant-at-Arms.

Pledge of Allegiance.

The President then introduced the National Guard Honor Guard and State Police Honor Guard, who led the Convention in the pledge of allegiance to the flag.

Pledge of allegiance.

The National Anthem was performed by Mishella Etienne-Campbell of Grace Church of All Nations in Dorchester.

National Anthem.

The invocation was offered by the Reverend Dennis Calhoun of the Invocation. Old North Church, UCC Marblehead, Massachusetts, as follows:

Holy One of many names, Source and Spring of all we are and aspire to be, we pause on this auspicious occasion to invoke your presence and blessing. Hear us as we pray.

We have assembled in this great people's chamber from every corner of the Commonwealth, to welcome this new chapter in the history of this great state. We are indebted to the good intentions, the deep convictions, and the enduring efforts of our forebears who bequeathed to us the solemn responsibility of sailing the ship of democracy now ours to hold in trust for future generations. Set our sights on lofty visions of what is possible when we dedicate ourselves to the selfless service of all people, especially those far removed from the power and privilege gathered here. Grant us the grace to remember and serve the poor, the disadvantaged, the vulnerable, and all those who bear the burden of discrimination because of their race, religion, ethnicity, sexuality or gender identity. Inspire and empower us to become the just

and compassionate people we are meant to be.

Today we ask your special blessing on our fellow citizen, the Honorable Charles Baker, as he takes the oath of office as the 72nd Governor of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. You have endowed him with the gifts, the desire, and the opportunity to steward the executive powers and responsibilities of his office. Grant him the moral clarity and political wisdom to govern well and creatively. Help him find the balance between conviction and compromise when they are called for, and incline him to seek help and counsel when they are needed. May he listen as well as he speaks, and learn as ably as he informs. Lay the mantle of your blessing upon Charlie and his wife Lauren, and their children Charlie, A.J., and Caroline, as they take this journey together. May your blessing also rest upon the Honorable Karyn Polito, her husband Steve and their children Bobby and Judy, as she begins her service as Lieutenant-Governor. Lift them, and all of the people of the Commonwealth, into the light of your countenance as the days ahead unfold. Bless us and keep us and cause your face to shine upon us.

Now, O God, in whom we live and move and have our being, may what is here begun bear witness to the best within us each and all.

We offer our prayers in the name of all that is sacred and holy. Amen.

Executive Councillors, oath of office. Before the President of the Senate, and in the presence of the two Houses of Assembly, the oaths and affirmations of office were then administered to, and subscribed by Joseph C. Ferreira of Somerset, Robert L. Jubinville of Milton, Marilyn M. Petitto Devaney of Watertown, Christopher A. Iannella, Jr. of Boston, Eileen R. Duff of Gloucester, Terrence W. Kennedy of Lynnfield, Jennie L. Caissie of Oxford and Michael J. Albano of Longmeadow, as Councillors.

Governor of the Commonwealth, oath of office. Before the President of the Senate, and in the presence of the two Houses of Assembly, the oaths and affirmations of office were then administered to, and subscribed by, His Excellency Charles D. Baker, Jr., as Governor, at twenty-eight minutes before one o'clock P.M.

Lieutenant-Governor, oath of office. Before the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and in the presence of the two Houses of Assembly, the oaths and affirmation of office were then administered to, and subscribed by Her Honor Karyn E. Polito, as Lieutenant-Governor, at twenty-three minutes before one o'clock P.M.

Proclamation.

After the certification of the oaths of office by the Governor and Lieutenant-Governor, a proclamation was made by the Secretary of the Commonwealth.

Her Honor the Lieutenant-Governor Karyn E. Polito then addressed the convention, as follows (see Senate, No. 2):

LIEUTENANT-GOVERNOR KARYN E. POLITO INAUGURAL ADDRESS.

Lieutenant-Governor Karyn E. Polito Inaugural Address. Friends, neighbors, and fellow citizens of this remarkable commonwealth, it's my honor to stand here today alongside my friend, our Governor, Charlie Baker. And for the first time in this house Chamber I stand humbled as your Lieutenant-Governor.

Thank you for your trust. And thank you for bestowing this honor upon us. We won't let you down.

To our many distinguished guests – servicemen and women, our local and state leaders, Governors and former Governors of the Commonwealth – we're honored to have you here. And to my friend Jan Cellucci, thank you so much for being here, and for your support, your friendship, and your advice. You are an inspiration to us all.

Today we especially remember and miss my friend and mentor Governor Paul Cellucci for the leadership he showed this state. And for the high bar of excellence he set for this administration. Thank you Jan, Kate, and the Cellucci Family.

And to my two incredible kids Judy and Bobby, I love you. And I want you both to know the greatest title I'll ever have in my life will always be your mom. And to my husband Steve – you are the best dad ever and my best friend. And it's because of your tremendous support that I stand here today.

To my parents Fran and Judy, and my family joining us in the Chamber, thank you. Thank you for instilling in me the values of hardwork, compassion, and service. I love you all.

Today begins a new chapter in the long and extraordinary history of our Commonwealth. Before us many brave and brilliant men and women gave of themselves to serve. Often in difficult times, these men and women created a proud history for our state. Today Charlie and I begin our journey with reverent respect and gratitude for their contribution, as well as an aspiration to build on that foundation, to make our state stronger and the lives of its people better.

But we won't be taking that journey alone – we'll do it as partners. Not just Governor and Lieutenant-Governor, but partners with those of you serving in our state legislature. Partners with our local leaders. Partners with the citizens of Massachusetts, who all share a common dream of creating endless opportunity for everyone – everywhere in our state.

Only when we put partisanship and politics aside, and only when we focus on what unites us rather than what divides us will we begin to realize the limitless potential of our people and our great state. Because the very best ideas, the most important values, are common ideas and common values.

We all know that we need to ensure every child receives a first-rate public education regardless of where they live. Let's work together to make that a reality.

We all know that everyone in Massachusetts should have an opportunity to find a great job or a great career, whether they live in Worcester, or Boston, or Springfield, or Berkshire County. Let's support our entrepreneurs, strengthen our small businesses, and provide our workers the tools and the training to make this happen.

We all want safe and thriving communities to raise our families. So we'll support our towns by renewing our commitment to local aid.

We all recognize our good fortune to live in a state blessed with so much beauty. So we'll continue to be leaders in conservation and science.

And we all recognize our fundamental responsibility as citizens of our commonwealth to care for our neighbors. So we'll lead a state government that is compassionate, that promotes equality, that empowers people with a pathway to self-sufficiency, and that provides real and meaningful support to those who need its help the most.

Today as we begin this journey as partners, I remember where I came from. And I remember my great grandfather Francesco. He came to this country from Sicily on Columbus Day in 1909. He arrived with little except a dream to build a better life for his family. He settled in Worcester County. He worked hard. And he saw that dream come true.

Nearly fourteen years ago today, I took the oath of office to serve in this House of Representatives. Inspired by my great grandfather, I saw public service as a pathway to help others live their dreams.

Today families across Massachusetts are working hard to achieve their dreams of making life better for themselves, their kids, and their grandkids. And as Charlie and I take office, we commit ourselves to our citizens.

We commit to work tirelessly in a bipartisan way with focus and a refusal to accept failure so that every child and every parent in Massachusetts will have the opportunity to realize their dreams.

So now let's roll up our sleeves and get to work.

Thank you. God Bless you and God Bless the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

His Excellency the Governor Charles D. Baker, Jr., thereupon submitted his address upon the general concerns of the Commonwealth, as follows (see Senate, No. 1):

GOVERNOR CHARLES D. BAKER, JR. INAUGURAL ADDRESS.

Governor Charles D. Baker, Jr.,— Inaugural Address. Mr. President and Members of the Senate, Mr. Speaker and Members of the House of Representatives, Lieutenant-Governor Polito and Members of the Governor's Council and the Cabinet, Chief Justice Gants and Members of the Judiciary, Former Massachusetts Governors Weld, Swift and Romney, Reverend Clergy.

Jan Cellucci and Angela Menino — I've known and admired you both for many years. And remain a huge fan of the energy and joy your husbands' brought to public service. And other distinguished guests — my thanks to all of you for being here today.

To my fellow citizens, it's with great humility and high honor that I assume the office of Governor of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

I'm well aware of the authority and privileges that come with this office. But they're inconsequential in comparison to the responsibility of serving and protecting the people of this great state. And the obligation to always live up to their trust.

The people have vested me with the title of Governor for the next four years. But I also hold other lifelong titles that I'm proud of. Son. Brother. Husband. Father. And neighbor. Those titles have shaped the values and vision that I bring to the corner office.

The Bible that I placed my left hand on a few minutes ago is the same one my mother held for my father 46 years ago. When he was sworn in as Assistant Secretary under then U.S. Transportation Secretary and former Massachusetts Governor John Volpe.

At a moment like this there's no way for a son to properly thank his parents for all they've done for him. Dad, I can only say that I love you both. You made me who I am today. And I wish Mom could be here in person to see this with you.

I want to especially thank my wife Lauren. For her love, counsel, sense of humor and endless support. I knew when we got married that I was a lucky guy. But I know now 27 years and three wonderful children later that I've been truly blessed.

On behalf of the people of Massachusetts, I thank Governor Deval Patrick for his service over the past eight years. And to wish him God speed.

I want to sincerely thank our public safety officers, first responders, and corrections officers for the work they do. It's a service that's always challenging and at times very complicated. And with very few exceptions these men and women do it every day with great skill and professionalism.

I also want to salute all those men and women from the Common-wealth who have or are serving in our country's armed forces. Since 9-11 many citizens of Massachusetts have answered our nation's call to service and have served with distinction. And when men and women serve so do their families. We must never forget that. As Governor, these men and women and their families will always be in my prayers.

Finally, to the people of France, our thoughts are with you during this difficult time.

Our Commonwealth is filled with hard working, talented and inspiring people. We're a global leader in health care, biotechnology, high technology, education, finance, energy efficiency and advanced manufacturing. And we've led the way for the nation on issues ranging from health care reform to marriage equality.

But we're nowhere near our full potential. Some of our toughest challenges have been ignored and lost amid the successes. Or have become the equivalent of kicking a can down the road because they're not politically convenient or easy to fix.

They range from having more than 1,500 homeless families assigned to hotels and motels. To dozens of lapses in performance that are frustrating for many. And in some cases devastating in their consequences.

I know we can do better.

The time has come to write the next chapter in the history of this great Commonwealth. To build on what makes us great. And get much better at what doesn't.

Lieutenant-Governor Polito and I have recruited a talented, experienced, diverse and bipartisan cabinet and staff. They will approach their mission with a passion and thoughtfulness to make Massachusetts great. And they understand that policy pronouncements without follow through —-amount to empty promises.

Tom Menino taught us all many valuable lessons. He believed that government was about high ideals. But he also equally believed that basic services mattered and that every detail counted.

When people have to wait for hours to conduct a simple transaction at the Registry of Motor Vehicles they're not being served.

And when thousands of families continue to be confused and let down by the Health Connector we've not paid attention to the details.

Those are but two examples.

We will challenge the status quo, look for and try new approaches and recognize they might not always work. When that happens, we'll acknowledge it. Learn from it. And try again.

Our actions will be heard in many ways. But the loudest of these actions will initially be in dealing with an immediate budget deficit, building a job-creating economy, closing the achievement gap, confronting opiate addiction and revitalizing our urban centers.

With respect to the state's budget our Constitution requires that the budget be balanced. No one understands that better than I do. The responsibility now rests with us.

History will record that a budget deficit exceeding half a billion dollars is being transferred to my administration.

If we're honest with ourselves then we can't blame our deficit on a lack of revenue. We have to recognize that this is a spending problem. And that dealing with it now will make balancing next year's budget that much easier.

We will hold the line on taxes, we're already demanding enough from hard working people. And we will protect cities and towns and fulfill our promise to end the cuts to local aid. Otherwise, every line item will be looked at. Governor Charles D. Baker, Jr.,— Inaugural Address. I look forward to working with House Speaker DeLeo, Senate President Rosenberg and the members of both legislative branches to close this gap.

While there are efficiencies to be gained and structural changes to be made there's no doubt that we have to make difficult decisions. We

will do so with great sensitivity and careful judgment.

Massachusetts has an unemployment rate of 5.8%. But that's a cold-hearted statistic that ignores the 200,000 people seeking work, the hundreds of thousands of underemployed, and the tens of thousands who have dropped out of the work force altogether.

There's no single initiative that can start and sustain a job creating economy. But there is clear evidence that we're too complex, too expensive, and too slow to move and make decisions. On this we must do better.

Our administration will work to reduce red tape and streamline regulatory requirements on start-ups and established businesses. And we'll report regularly on our progress.

Healthcare costs are an enormous burden on everyone, dragging down our collective ability to grow and hire more people. We'll pursue

many paths on this challenge.

But the simplest one - ensuring full price and performance transparency is long overdue. The same service in the same neighborhood, with the same outcome can vary in price by as much as 300 percent. This must change.

There's also a direct link between economic growth and a sustain-

able and affordable supply of energy.

But as we begin the New Year, families and businesses across New England are being hit with unprecedented increases in their energy and electric bills. At exactly the same time energy prices across the rest of the country are falling. This increase is being driven in large part by inadequate delivery systems, the result of poor planning and coordination.

I look forward to working with my colleagues here in Massachusetts and with leaders like Governor Raimondo of Rhode Island as well as the other New England Governors to solve this problem while we continue to reduce our carbon footprint.

I'm a proud product of the Massachusetts public schools. And to this day, I can still name almost every teacher I had growing up. They moved me, challenged me and made me feel like my opinion mattered.

Across Massachusetts, there are many talented and inspiring educators doing for their students what their predecessors did for me.

I was in Lawrence yesterday witnessing firsthand the progress that's been made in just a few short years there. Despite all their issues, and they have many, a renaissance is underway in their public schools.

Attendance is up. Dropout rates are down. Test scores and graduation rates are up. The school day is longer.

And Lawrence is hardly alone. There are exceptional schools in many of our most disadvantaged neighborhoods throughout the Commonwealth. Proving they can get it done for kids, no matter what their circumstances.

But other schools really do need to step it up for the children and the families that they serve. Poor performance given the dramatic success of other schools can no longer be tolerated. And while traditional public schools will always be the backbone of our education, we need more high performing public charter schools in underperforming school districts to complement them. As I speak, there are more than 45,000 Bay State kids and their parents on waiting lists for these schools.

It's wrong for any of us to stand on a front porch or in a city neighborhood sympathizing with a mom or dad when they tell us their child is not getting the education to succeed in life and then oppose lifting the charter school cap or making the changes we need to ensure that every school is great.

Last year, Governor Patrick called opiate addiction a public health crisis. He was right. It is an epidemic. One that cuts across every community in the Commonwealth.

Several months ago I met John and Stephanie Green of Easton. After a routine medical procedure their 19-year-old son Evan was prescribed opiates for pain. Slowly and unknowingly, he became addicted to them. When the prescription ended he turned to heroin.

Over a period of years, John and Stephanie tried as hard as any parents could to help their son. It was an agonizing, yet all too familiar story. Tragically, Evan fatally overdosed almost a year ago to this day.

As a parent, my heart goes out to John and Stephanie for their devastating loss. As Governor, I intend to tackle this problem head on because too many families have gone through the grief and pain that John and Stephanie have.

I look forward to working with Attorney General Maura Healey, Boston Mayor Marty Walsh and many others on this issue. Because without strong action many more individuals and families like the Greens will have the same terrible experience.

When Lieutenant-Governor Karyn Polito and I campaigned last year, we said we were chasing 100 percent of the vote. And we campaigned hard in many communities of color.

We did so because we believe these neighborhoods have not benefitted from the economic success that has become more commonplace in other parts of our Commonwealth.

But there are inspiring points of light in these communities. Because individual economic development, education, community development and social service entrepreneurs are turning so-called lost causes into definite winners.

My friend and the Commonwealth's new Secretary for Business Development Nam Pham and the folks at VietAID worked with their neighbors to literally turn their neighborhood in Dorchester from a dangerous place into a community on the move — where businesses want to create jobs and families want to live.

Robert Lewis Jr. at The BASE in Roxbury has attracted millions of dollars in scholarships from colleges across the country. These scholarships are designated for the young men from communities of color who participate in his baseball and mentoring program.

And the kids at United Teen Equality Center (UTEC) in Lowell are turning gang members into productive citizens through programs like their culinary institute. In talking about their success, their enthusiasm to do more is contagious. Our problem is not that no one has figured out what works. Just the opposite.

Governor Charles D. Baker, Jr.,— Inaugural Address. The entrepreneurs and leaders that I just mentioned as well as many others have cracked the code. Our government just hasn't had the will or the foresight to support what they are doing and do more of it.

The tragic events in Ferguson and New York City speak loudly. And their message is a simple one. When people lose hope, bad things happen. I've said a thousand times I want every community to be a place where people believe tomorrow is going to be better than today. I say that not just because I believe it, but because I believe in it.

The great writer and philosopher Samuel Johnson once said, "The natural flights of the human mind are not from pleasure to pleasure but from hope to hope."

Put another way, if you think things are heading in the right direction, then you believe in and can't wait for tomorrow, no matter where you might be today.

And that faith in tomorrow needs to be based on something beyond the word of our Lord. It has to include the here and now. The quality of the schools you send your kids to, the parks they play in, the main streets you can walk to from your house or apartment, the job you have and the future it offers to you and your family.

If we are to avoid the tragedies that make the front page —like Ferguson, as well as the ones that don't like the awful shooting death of Dawnn Jaffier, then it's imperative that we renew our commitment and re-double our efforts to provide everyone, no matter where they live with the kinds of opportunities that exist across our Commonwealth.

Decades ago, John F. Kennedy stood where I stand today when he delivered a farewell address to the General Court of Massachusetts before traveling to Washington D.C. to become our 35th President.

In that address, he said success in public service should be measured against four historic qualities: courage, judgment, integrity and dedication.

The President-elect defined these qualities for his time in office. Today, I offer them as this administration's compass in the years ahead — but redefined for our time.

First we must have courage to set partisanship aside and embrace the best ideas and solutions, no matter which side of the aisle they come from.

Second we must have judgment to make our government as efficient, responsive and innovative as it can be.

Third we must have integrity to assure accountability and transparency because when we make honest mistakes they must be acknowledged and corrected.

And finally we must have dedication to serve the best interest of the public and only the public.

It's undeniable that the ability and responsibility to make a real difference in the lives of people, a growing and competitive economy, quality and affordable education for our kids, responsible, forward looking environmental policy as well as strong and safe communities lies with and within us if we approach our work every day with courage, judgment, integrity and dedication.

Only by working together will we make Massachusetts great. With your help, I know we will.

God bless you all and God bless the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Thank you.

Let There Be Peace On Earth was performed by Kristin Taylor.

Song.

The benediction was given by Bishop A. Livingston Foxworth of Benediction. Grace Church of All Nations in Dorchester, as follows:

O God, Creator, Redeemer and Ruler of the universe, whose glory is dwelling among us!

We commend this administration to your merciful care, that, being guided by your Providence, we may dwell secure in your peace.

Grant we pray to our brother Charlie Baker, Governor of this Great Commonwealth, and to all in authority, wisdom and strength to know and to do thy will.

Fill them with the love of truth and righteousness, and make them ever mindful of their calling to serve this people in your fear;

We pray that Governor Baker and Lt. Governor Polito, will be anxious for nothing but in everything by prayer and supplication with thanksgiving let their requests be made known unto You.

So that your peace which exceeds all human understanding,

Might keep thier hearts and minds through Christ,

And now, may your grace rest, rule and abide with us, now henceforth and forever, may your joy be rich and full in us, and flow from us to touch those with whom we come in contact.

And yes Lord, may our tomorrow be even more blessed than our today, through Christ our Lord we pray, world without end, amen, amen and amen!

His Excellency the Governor, Her Honor the Lieutenant-Governor, the Constitutional Officers and the Honorable Executive Council then withdrew from the Joint Session, under the escort of the Sergeantat-Arms.

Withdrawal from Chamber.

On motion of Ms. Spilka, at twenty-six minutes before two o'clock P.M., the Convention of the Two Branches was dissolved; and the Senate withdrew from the Joint Session, under the escort of the Sergeantat-Arms.

At twenty-four minutes before two o'clock P.M., the House reconvened with Mr. Donato of Medford in the Chair.

Orders

On motion of Ms. Garlick of Needham,—

Ordered, That the Secretary of the Commonwealth give notice to Secretary His Excellency the Governor that Joseph C. Ferreira of Somerset, Robert L. Jubinville of Milton, Marilyn M. Pettito Devaney of Watertown, Christopher A. Iannella, Jr., of Boston, Eileen R. Duff of of Councillors. Gloucester, Terrence W. Kennedy of Lynnfield, Jennie L. Caissie of Oxford and Michael J. Albano of Longmeadow, have been duly elected and qualified as Councillors, to advise him in the executive part of the government.

to notify qualifications

On motion of Mr. DeLeo of Winthrop,—

Ordered, That when the House adjourns today, it adjourn to meet Next on Monday next at eleven o'clock A.M.

At twenty-two minutes before two o'clock P.M., on motion of Mr. Frost of Auburn (Mr. Donato of Medford being in the Chair), the House adjourned, to meet the following Monday at eleven o'clock A.M., in an Informal Session.